LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 25 FEBRUARY 2020

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE HELD IN COMMITTEE ROOMS 2/3, CIVIC OFFICES ANGEL STREET BRIDGEND CF31 4WB ON TUESDAY, 25 FEBRUARY 2020 AT 09:30

Present

Councillor DRW Lewis – Chairperson

RM James	RJ Collins	B Jones	AA Pucella
MJ Kearn	A Hussain	TH Beedle	

Apologies for Absence

PA Davies, JE Lewis and JE Williams

Officers:

Julie Ellams	Democratic Services Officer - Committees
Andrea Lee	Senior Lawyer
Will Lane	Operational Manager Shared Regulatory Services

38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None

39. <u>APPROVAL OF MINUTES</u>

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting dated 13 August 2019 be approved as a true and accurate record.

40. NATIONAL REGISTER OF TAXI LICENCE REVOCATIONS & REFUSALS (NR3)

The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services presented a report advising the Committee of the functionality of the National Register of Taxi Licence Revocations and Refusals (NR3). He explained that the Local Government Association (LGA) had commissioned the development of a national register of hackney carriage/private hire driver licence refusals and revocations to assist local authorities in determining whether applicants were "fit and proper" to obtain a licence.

The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services explained that the NR3 was a mechanism for licensing authorities to share details of individuals who had had a hackney carriage/private hire driver's licence revoked or an application for one refused. Currently, unless disclosed by the applicant, there was no consistent way of knowing if that applicant had previously been refused or revoked by another Licensing Authority. It was envisaged that the NR3 register would provide a consistent approach towards licensing, increase confidence in the suitability of applicants and potentially increased public safety through assisting the refusal of unsuitable applicants to the taxi/private hire trade.

The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services outlined the changes to the current procedure. When a grant or renewal application was received, officers would undertake a search of the NR3 register. If there was a positive result a request would be made to the local authority that made the entry for further information to determine the applicant's suitability. A draft policy was detailed in appendix B to the report. As the NR3 Register would involve the processing of personal data, the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection Act 2018 principles would need to be followed. He

LICENSING COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 25 FEBRUARY 2020

stressed that an applicant would not automatically be refused because there was an entry on the NR3 Register. An entry would indicate there was further information to allow the committee to make a decision on whether or not an applicant was "fit and proper" to obtain a licence.

A member raised concerns that the NR3 Register would only cover Wales and that a number of drivers in Bridgend had dual registration with other areas outside Wales. The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services replied that the NR3 Register covered both Wales and England but currently it was voluntary. It was hoped that new draft regulatory guidance would state that all local authorities in England and Wales should adopt NR3.

A member asked what arrangements were in place to check applicants from outside the UK. The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services explained that there were standard checks in place regarding criminal records, right to work and the immigration process.

A member asked what would happen if an application was submitted using another person's information. The Operational Manager, Shared Regulatory Services replied that officers requested passport information and other checks to confirm an applicant's identity.

<u>RESOLVED</u>: That Licensing Committee adopt:

- a) the use of the NR3 register and
- b) the NR3 Policy detailed in Appendix B with immediate effect.

41. URGENT ITEMS

None

The meeting closed at 09:50